1980

# Larry Hollingsworth D/B/A the King'S Palace & Rusty Hanna, Et al., D/B/A the Society of Licensed Masseurs v. the City of South Salt Lake, a Municipal Corporation, Clint Balmforth, and the South Salt Lake Police Department : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF NATURE OF CASE

The Appellants Appeal from a Judgment entered against them in the Third Judicial District Court of Utah, dismissing their Complaint in this action, which Complaint seeks a Declaratory Judgment that Sections 3B-8-3,4,5,7 and 8 of the revised ordinances of South Salt Lake, 1974, as amended, are invalid, the action being brought pursuant to §78-33-1 et seq. U.C.A. (1953) as amended. Plaintiffs claim said ordinance sections are in conflict with the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States,

Article I; §2,7, and 18 and Article IV §1 of the Constitution of the State of Utah; and various statutes of the State of Utah.

#### DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Third Judicial District Court, with Judge Homer F. Wilkinson presiding, ordered Plaintiffs' Complaint Dismissed, in a Brief Order of Dismissal, dated December 20, 1979. This Order of Dismissal was entered based on, and as a result of, an earlier Memorandum decision, in the case of Redwood Gym et al, vs. Salt Lake County Commission et al, which Memorandum decision declared a similar ordinance passed by the Salt Lake County Commission, to be valid in its entirety. Judge Wilkinson Dismissal was made pursuant to an agreement of the parties made in an effort to expedite Appeal, after oral arguments had been made on the continuation of a Restraining Order against the enforcement of the ordinance; and no proceedings have taken place on the record.

#### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellants seek reversal of the Order Dismissing their Complaint, and the matter remanded to the Third Judicial District Court with instructions to enter Judgment for Plaintiffs declaring the above mentioned sections of the revised ordinances of the City of void and of no effect. In the alternative, Appellants request this Court to remand this action to the Third Judicial

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

Plaintiffs have been operating a Massage Business and Health Studio at 60 East, 3300 South, in Salt Lake County, since 1975. On November 20, 1978, the Salt Lake County Commission passed an ordinance repealing Title XV, Chapter 18 of the revised ordinances of Salt Lake County, 1966, as amended, and enacting a new Title XV Chapter 18 of the revised ordinances of Salt Lake County, 1966, as amended. This ordinance purported to regulate the business of giving massages, and contained provisions for the issuance of licenses, determining whether the premises where massages were given were sanitary enough for that purpose, prohibiting certain acts by masseurs, and leveling civil and penal sanctions for violations of those provisions. On December 6, 1978, an action was filed by the owners of several massage businesses seeking a Declaratory Judgment that Sections 3,4,5,7 and 8 of the Massage Ordinance were invalid, and seeking injunctive relief against the enforcement of those sections. A temporary restraining order was issued against the enforcement of the ordinance as a whole, but was subsequently limited to sections 5 (1) and 5 (2) of the ordinance, prohibiting the County from enforcing only those sections having to do with the proscription of opposite sex massages and the consumption or storage of alcoholic beverages on the premises. This limiting of the restraining order

was by mutual agreement, as it was determined by both parties that this would be adequate to allow the businesses to continue functioning while the legal process determined the validity of the ordinance. On December 14, 1979, that case, Redwood Gym vs. Salt Lake County Commission, was decided by the Third Judicial District Court, Judge Homer F. Wilkinson presiding, in a short Memorandum decision pursuant to Motions for Summary Judgment made by both the business owners and the County. The Memorandum decision simply stated "Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment is denied. Defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment is granted." It then indicated that the Restraining Order would be set aside at 5:00 P.M. on December 19. An appeal of that decision was made shortly thereafter, and is now pending before this Court.

The Plaintiffs in this action, while in similar circumstance to the Plaintiff's in the other action, did not become parties thereto, one reason being that the City of South Salt Lake was, at that time, involved in annexation proceedings to remove their business from the jurisdiction of the County. Early in 1979, the annexation was completed, and on March 14, 1979, an ordinance was passed by the South Salt Lake City Council duplicating the County ordinance, with only minor changes to allow for proper administration by the City, as opposed to the County. An oral agreement was tentatively made between the owners of several massage businesses now in the City of South Salt Lake, and the

authorities of that City, that the one section of the ordinance having to do with opposite sex massages would not be enforced until a decision was rendered in the Redwood Gym vs. Salt Lake County Commission case, thus allowing the businesses in South Salt Lake to remain open, as long as they abided by the rest of the ordinance. Late in 1979, that agreement broke down amidst charges of Police Harrassment, by the business owners, and Countercharges of wide spread violations of other sections of the ordinance, by the City. During October and November of 1979, six arrests were made of masseurs working in the business operated by Plaintiffs for violations of §5 (3) of the South Salt Lake ordinance, which prohibits the touching of the genitals of a customer by a masseur, and offering to touch. A review of the action brought by those massage business owners still operating in the County, showed that they had backed away from any challenge to that specific section of the County ordinance, and it was deemed necessary to make such a challenge immediately, in connection with the challenge made to the other portions of the City ordinance.

This action was filed on December 10, 1979, and a temporary restraining order against the enforcement of the contested sections of the City ordinance was issued that day; The Order to Show Cause why that temporary restraining order should not be made a preliminary injunction was set for hearing on December 18. At the Hearing on December 18, it was announced by Judge



Homer F. Wilkinson that a decision had been reached on the related County law suit, and that a summary judgment had been granted to Salt Lake County, allowing them to enforce the contested portions of their massage ordinance. Argument was made at the time on the additional issues presented by the instant case. Judge Wilkinson indicated that it was his feeling that there were no substantial differences in the law-suits, and that he was inclined to stand by his decision that the entire ordinance was valid. He indicated further that he would allow the temporary restraining order to remain in effect for the rest of the ten day period allowed such an order, and then allow it to dissolve by its own terms. Since such a decision meant that the City would shortly be allowed to enforce the entire ordinance, and since the City indicated that it intended to do so, Plaintiffs agreed to treat the oral arguments on the hearing for temporary relief as cross motions for summary judgment, thus allowing a Judgment to be entered, which could promptly be appealed. Therefore no proceedings were had on the record in this case, which was dismissed on December 20. An appeal was filed on December 21, and this Court issued its own temporary injunction against the enforcement of the opposite sex provisions of the same ordinance the same day. Further argument on the continuation of such injunction was set for, and made, January 7, at which time Court issued a further injunction against the enforcement of that provision of the ordinance, pending the outcome of this case.

The contested sections of the ordinance are fully set out below:

Sec. 3B-8-3. REQUIREMENTS FOR THE ISSUANCE OF A LICENSE. Each individual desiring a massage establishment license or masseur license shall:

- (1) Be an individual of at least 21 years of age.
- (2) Make application to the City Council through the City Recorder for a business license and provide the following material and information under oath:
  - (a) The street, building, and room number of the place where applicant proposes to give massages or maintain a massage establishment.
  - (b) Make written disclosures of all convictions of crimes involving moral turpitude within the past 5 years.
  - (c) Two duplicate photographs of the applicant, measuring two inches by two inches, that have been taken within one month from the date of the application.
- (3) A certificate from a licensed physician certifying that the applicant is free from communicable diseases.

Sec. 3B-8-4. SANITARY PREMISES. All applications for a massage establishment license shall be referred to the Salt Lake City Board of Health for investigation and a license shall be granted only after a finding by the Salt Lake City-County Board of Health that the proposed premises are sanitary enough to conduct business therein without jeopardizing the public health.

Sec. 3B-8-5. PROHIBITED ACTS. The following acts are prohibited:

- (1) It shall be unlawful for a masseur to administer, for hire, to any person of the opposite sex, a massage, a fomentation, or a bath. It shall be unlawful for any massage establishment licensee to cause or permit in or about his place of business or in connection with his business, an employee to administer a massage upon any person of the opposite sex. This section shall not apply to any treatment administered by any person licensed to practice a healing art or profession under the provisions of Utah Code Annotated, 1953, or of any other law of this State. Machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

- (2) It shall be unlawful to serve, to store, or allow to be served, or allow to be consumed, any alcoholic beverages on the licensed premises of a massage establishment.
- (3) It shall be unlawful for a masseur to touch or offer to touch or massage the genitalia of customers.

Sec. 3B-8-7. CIVIL SANCTIONS. Any unlawful conduct, whether the omission to perform an act required by this ordinance, or the performance of an act prohibited by this ordinance, shall be cause for revocation or suspension of a massage establishment's license or masseur's license. The holder of a massage establishment license may have his or her license revoked or suspended for any and all violations of the provisions of this ordinance committed by his or her employees.

Sec. 3B-8-8. PENALTIES. The person convicted of violations of this chapter of the Revised Ordinances of South Salt Lake may be fined not to exceed \$299.00, imprisoned in the Salt Lake County Jail not to exceed six months, or both.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

§5(1) OF THE SOUTH SALT LAKE MASSAGE ORDINANCE IS VOID AS BEING AN IMPROPER EXERCISE OF THE POLICE POWER.

This section prohibits a masseur from massaging a person of the opposite sex, and also prohibits the owner of a massage establishment from allowing such conduct. It has been agreed by all parties that most massage business is by women on men, and that this ordinance would eliminate that business. Since the ordinance in question here is basically identical to the County ordinance passed four months earlier, it is useful to look at the minutes of the Public Hearing held by the Board of Commissioners of Salt Lake County on November 20, 1978,



before passing their ordinance. The Memorandum filed by the Salt Lake County Attorney in the Lower Court Proceeding on the Redwood Gym vs. Salt Lake County Commission case shows clearly the reasoning behind the ordinance:

The major advocates for the adoption of the ordinance were Mr. Curtis Oberhansly, Chief Deputy County Attorney and Mr. Nick Morgan, a Captain over the Vice Squad for many years in the Salt Lake County Sheriff's Office. They each testified that the circumstances in the unincorporated area of Salt Lake County required the adoption of the ordinance. Mr. Oberhansly testified that in many cases massage parlors are fronts for prostitution and that during the preceding six years the Salt Lake County Sheriff has tried to control prostitution in massage parlors by enforcing existing state laws, by enacting and enforcing new county ordinances and by enforcing other laws, but it has been ineffective. Defendant's Memorandum, page 3.

Quoting from the official Minutes of the Hearing, the County Attorney quotes Mr. Morgan as stating the frustrations of his Office in combatting the problem:

Rarely is the jail sentence imposed. The fine is of such a nature that it could be classified as the cost of doing business. You talk about prostitution and the type of money that is generated from that type of activity. The fines that are levied in regards to the misdemeanor violations are a mere pittance in comparison to what is made, so could adequately be classified as a cost of doing business. So obviously the State Law and the situation related to massage parlors specifically is not adequate because it allows a bridge or a situation that takes much more time as far as an investigation is concerned that is justified by the outcome as evidenced by the tremendous growth in massage parlors merely in the last six months.

This is not the first attempt on the part of Salt Lake County to combat the problems of prostitution by eliminating or severely restricting massage parlors. In the case of

Jensen vs. Salt Lake County Board of Commissioners, 530 P2d. 3 (Utah 1974), this Court dealt with a Salt Lake County Ordinance which required that masseurs or massage parlor operators must have practised as massage therapists for at least five years, be graduates of a massage and/or therapy school approved by the American Massage and Therapy Association, or be a fully accredited member of that association. The Court, in finding the ordinance invalid, stated:

At the Trial in the court below a county commissioner and a member of the county sheriff's office testified that prostitution was the major concern in the adoption of the ordinance in question. It is the County's contention that it is a valid exercise of police power to regulate massage establishments and to control prostitution. We are of the opinion that the County does have the power to deal with those matters directly. However, the Ordinance under consideration does neither, but rather it attempts to set standards and qualifications of those persons who intend to engage in a legitimate occupation or trade. This is not a proper exercise of the police power. At page 4.

The decision arrived at in that case was unanimous, and the opinion was joined in by four of the five Justices of this Court. Justice Ellett, concurring in the result, stated:

I concur in the result. The requirements of the ordinance in my opinion are too severe to be considered a reasonable requirement for a license to operate as a masseuse. There surely are masseuses who are moral women. At page 4.

Apparently not convinced that this Court would not approve an ordinance directed at prostitution, but penalizing those not engaged in prostitution who are attempting to engage in a legitimate business, Salt Lake County passed a further ordinance requiring large licensing fees and attempting to establish classes of massage operators "intended to make

a distinction between theraputic massages and 'pleasure-type' massages." Hart Health Studio vs. Salt Lake County, 577 P2d. 116 (Utah 1978), at 119. While the Court invalidated this ordinance on the basis that the classes were arbitrary and unreasonable, the Court made some comments which are very much on point in the instant case. §15-18-3 of the Salt Lake County Ordinance, at that time, read, in part, as follows:

Effective January 1, 1977, the following annual license fees shall be charged:

(e) for any massage parlor employing any of the masseurs who worked at any massage parlor business whose massage parlor license had been revoked within the past twelve months., by the Board of County Commissioners: \$5,000.00. At page 117.

The Court, in addressing this section of the ordinance, stated as follows:

§15-18-3 (e) imposes an annual license fee of \$5,000 on a licensee, whose annual fee but for this section would be \$250.

The imposition of this \$5,000 license fee is related neither to the violation of a county ordinance by the licensee who must pay the fee, nor to a violation by the employee -- masseur but instead is based on a violation of an ordinance by a former employer of the employee. This class of employees and employers is discriminated against and without reasonable relationship to eliminating immorality.

We also believe this section of the ordinance is somewhat like the old bills of pains and penalties (special acts of a legislature which inflict punishment on persons without any conviction by the ordinary course of judicial proceedings), prohibited by the Utah and U.S. Constitutions. The Ordinance clearly penalizes the masseur and his employer without a trial or conviction, and thus is clearly invalid and unenforceable under the constitutional provisions cited. At 118.

Amont the other sections of the ordinance struck down by

this decision, were sections dealing with the posting of a performance or cash bond by any massage parlor intending to allow massage of the opposite sex, in order that the massage parlor would, by so doing, guarantee its compliance with the general laws of the county. The Court did not reach the contention of the massage parlor owner that this was an invalid use of the police power, but instead ruled that the classification scheme of which it was a part, was illegal, and so the ordinance could not stand. Plaintiffs contend, however, that the opposite sex provisions of the new ordinance is as was the previous part already cited, "somewhat like the old bills of pains and penalties," prohibited by both the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution and Article I, §2 of the Constitution of Utah. Section 15-8-6(3), standing by itself, is very similar to the present §3B-8-5(1) which is contested here, but is not as harsh. While that section would have allowed a massage parlor to stay in business, although at some inconvenience, this present ordinance is assured of putting most, if not all, massage operations out of business.

Both the county and the city do have power to regulate businesses in their jurisdictions, although §17-5-27 U.C.A. (1953) appears to be broader in giving grants of authority to counties than is §10-8-39 U.C.A. (1953) in giving such grants to cities. The ability to license and regulate, however, does not include the ability to prohibit. (See



Combined Communications Corporation vs. City and County of Denver, 542 P2d. 79 (Colo. 1975)). Nor does it, of course, include the right to make unreasonable and arbitrary regulations, as can be easily seen by the two Utah cases previously cited (see also Winther vs. Village of Weippe, 430 P2d. 689 (Idaho 1967)). The city and county ordinances at issue in the two cases under advisement here come before this court as the result of a simple inability on the part of the county commission and city council to believe what the court has told them clearly twice before: You must not punish someone for what they might do, and if you desire to stop prostitution, stop it directly, not by prohibiting businesses in which the opportunity for such acts might present itself, if the business operator is unscrupulous.

## POINT II

§3B-8-5(1) OF THE REVISED ORDINANCES OF SOUTH SALT LAKE IS INVALID AS EXCEEDING THE DELEGATED AUTHORITY GIVEN TO CITIES BY THE LEGISLATURE.

This Court, of course, has ruled in Salt Lake City vs. Sutter, 61 U. 533, 216 P. 234 (Utah 1923) that all powers of municipalities are derived from the legislature. Those powers and duties are found in Title 10 Chapter 8 U.C.A. (1953) as amended. §10-8-41 U.C.A. states that cities:

. . . may suppress and prohibit the keeping of disorderly houses, houses of ill fame or assignation, or houses kept by, maintained for, or resorted to or used by,

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