1980

Larry Hollingsworth D/B/A the King'S Palace &
Rusty Hanna, Et al., D/B/A the Society of Licensed
Masseurs v. the City of South Salt Lake, a Municipal
Corporation, Clint Balmforth, and the South Salt
Lake Police Department : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

State v. Mason, 94 Utah 501, 78 P.2d 920 (1938)
at page 920 set the following precedent:

to be unconstitutional as discriminatory, the discrimination of a statute must be unreasonable or arbitrary and a classification is never unreasonable or arbitrary in its inclusion or exclusion features so long as there is some basis for the differentiation between classes or subject matters included as compared to those excluded from its operation and if the differentiation bears a reasonable relation to the purposes to be accomplished by the statute. Const. U.S. Amendment 14, Section 1.

Within the ordinance adopted by the City of South Salt Lake regarding opposite-sex massages, masseuses and masseurs are treated equally. It applies equally to both men and women. In a similar case in the Supreme Court of North Carolina, Smith v. Keator, supra, the court approved the restrictions of the ordinances:

The ordinance applies equally to both men and women...the barrier erected by the ordinance against immoral acts likely to result from too intimate familiarity of the sexes is no more than a reasonable regulation imposed by the city council in the fair exercise of police

powers...there is nothing in the ordinance that denies equal protection guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment. It applies to all alike who give massages for hire and who are not licensed to practice one of the arts of healing...

Again, in the case of Patterson v. City of Dallas, supra, this premise was supported, and the court held the ordinance was valid when it stated at 842:

The ordinance applies alike to both men and women. If petitioner should receive only male patrons and do his own work or employ only masseurs, he would not violate the ordinance. If he should receive only female patrons and employ only masseuses to do his work, there would be no violation. The barrier erected by the ordinance against immoral acts likely to result from too intimate familiarity of the sexes is no more than a reasonable regulation imposed by the city council in the fair exercise of police powers.

In the landmark case of Ex parte Maki, supra, the appellant argued violation of anti-discrimination acts found under Section 18, Article 20 of the Constitution. The court, however, declared that the ordinance did not disqualify, on the account of sex, any person from entering or pursuing any lawful business, vocation, or profession because the ordinance did not challenge the right of either man or woman to work as a masseur or to own such a business. On that ground, there is no discrimination.

Appellants argue that the ordinance is void as a denial of due process, and is thus contrary to the Fourteenth Amendment. The case of Smith v. Keator, supra, dealing with the constitutionality of opposite-sex massage noted the following at page 209:

"Class legislation" is not offensive to the Constitution when the classification is based on a reasonable distinction and the law is made to apply uniformly to all the members of the class affected. Or, as the principle is more often expressed, when the law applies uniformly to all persons in like situation--which of itself implies that the classification must have a reasonable basis, without arbitrary discrimination between those in like situations.

The appellants' argument that the City Ordinance unreasonably infringes upon the right of contract has no substantial basis. Notwithstanding the ordinance, a licensed masseur may spend all of his time massaging men, and may employ a masseuse to massage any woman requesting treatment. Neither the state nor the federal constitution guarantees to a person unrestricted license in pursuing any line of business that he wishes, as he wishes to do so. The state may have conditions on that right, and may apply such restrictions to massage parlors, just as it does to doctors, lawyers, or garbage collectors. As long as the regulatory laws are not the result of benefit of private interest, unfair, or without justifiable ends, regulations are constitutional

and enforceable. Farther, because the City has found it necessary to regulate the business of massage parlors, but has not comprehended every possible evil that it must legislate, does not negate the need for, nor the impact of enacted ordinances.

Finally, to counter the argument concerning a class being characterized, rather than an individual on the basis of his/her own merit, and to counter the argument that because of class characterization, those honorable, moral, and ethical practitioners are subjected to regulations designed to prevent immoral acts, findings by the legislative body to concur, historically, that the existence of an evil in connection with massage parlors is widespread. This is sufficient answer to the complaint of one engaged in the business, even though he is himself honorable. He is not deprived of his property because he must conform to such legislation. His own compliance with such measures should be considered a privilege and a protection against the further corruption of his legitimate business.

POINT III. THE SOUTH SALT LAKE MASSAGE ORDINANCES
ARE A VALID EXERCISE OF POLICE POWER.

The state codes and the judicial decisions of Utah have historically supported the fact that the exercise of police power is valid when regulating massage parlor business.

Citing the same case which the appellants have used in arguing this point (p. 11, Brief of Appellant), Hart Health Studio v. Salt Lake County, 577 P.2d 116 (Utah 1978) at 118, the court's opinion was clearly in favor of police regulation:

It is fundamental that the regulation of business--and specifically this type of business--is within the police power of the state...(Emphasis added).

This case alone is enough to validate the argument in favor of the respondent as a clear statement of the Utah Court's sentiment. Further confirmation of this expressed authority are upheld in additional decisions. Salt Lake City v. Allred, 437 P.2d 434 (Utah 1968) at page 434 states:

It is proper exercise of statutory grant of police power to municipalities to preserve and protect public morals, and any practice of business which has tendency to weaken or corrupt morals of those who follow it, as shown by experience, is such conduct as affects "public morals." U.C.A. 1953, 10-8-84.

When rendering the decision on Salt Lake City v. Allred, the court applied the findings of Salt Lake City v. Kusse, 97 Utah 113, P.2d 671 (1938), that found the grant of general police powers to cities under predecessor statutes to Section 10-8-84, U.C.A. 1953, it would appear reasonable that sexual intercourse for hire and related offenses would be included in such general police power.

The protection of public morals has always been a matter of local concern requiring regulation by municipalities. It properly falls within the scope of the police power pertaining to public morals.

Other cases considering similar legislation reached the same conclusion. J.S.K. Enterprises, Inc. v. City of Lacey, supra, at page 600 determined two significant points:

- 1) A city, in exercise of its police power, may regulate massagists on grounds of public health, safety and morality...

and,

- 2) Police Power regulation is subject to provisions of state and federal constitutions prohibiting granting of special privileges and immunities and guaranteeing equal protection of laws, but within limits of such restrictive rules, legislative body has a wide measure of discretion and its determination cannot be successfully attacked unless it is manifest arbitrary, unreasonable, inequitable, and unjust. (Emphasis added).

Ex Parte Maki, supra, at page 64, affirms that the imposition of such ordinances by a city council is in fair exercise of police powers, and that such regulation by police powers to maintain the moral welfare does not arbitrarily deprive a person engaged in a regulated business of his property without "due process of law" (Const. Art I, Section 13, U.S.C.A. Const. Amend. 14. sec. 1).

Finally, Smith v. Keator, supra, at page 207:

...after noting that the California case of Ex parte Maki, supra, was so well decided that it was decisive of the appeal before them, held that a city ordinance declaring that it was unlawful to administer a massage to any person of the opposite sex was a fair exercise of the police power of the city and that did not violate any constitutional rights of the licensees of the massage establishment.

POINT IV. THE SOUTH SALT LAKE MASSAGE ORDINANCES
ARE NOT IN CONFLICT WITH UTAH STATE LAW.

In laying a foundation on the basic premises of this argument, it is important to note two precedents determined in the case of Salt Lake City v. Allred, supra, at page 434, in relation to city/state legislation:

1) There is nothing in state statutes regulating sexual offenses that evidences any express or implied intent to preclude local governments from also attempting to prohibit and suppress the difficult problem of the sex offender.
U.C.A. 1953, 76-53-8 to 76-53-12

and,

2) City has the right to legislate on the same subject as state statutes where either general police power or express grant of authority is conferred upon municipalities.

South Salt Lake, in forming legislation dealing with opposite-sex massages, is in harmony with the above decision. Appellants argue that South Salt Lake has adopted an ordinance "in direct conflict with the State of Utah" because prostitution means one thing to the State of Utah and "in South Salt Lake, it means far more." The courts have not found such expansions of definitions either inconsistent or against legislation.

In State v. Salt Lake City, 21 Utah 2d 318,

445 P.2d 691 (1968), at page 691, the Supreme Court of Utah summarizes their position:

...where legislature prohibits citizens from doing some act, there is no basis to imply that the legislature intended that cities and counties should not add additional prohibitions.

By expanding the definition of "prostitution," South Salt Lake has, indeed, added prohibitions, and is therefore within their legal rights as a municipality. This concept is in accordance with Salt Lake City v. Kusse, supra, where the Utah Supreme Court, in commenting on various tests to determine whether there is a conflict between the statute and the ordinance voiced the following with approval:

The city does not attempt to authorize by this ordinance what the legislature has forbidden; nor does it forbid what the legislature has expressly licensed, authorized, or required.

The Supreme Court of the State of Utah has also determined in the case of Layton City v. Speth, 578 P.2d 828, (Utah 1978) at page 831, the following:

Cities are empowered by statute to pass all ordinances, rules, and regulations for carrying into effect all powers and duties conferred and such as are necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity, and improve the morals, peace and good order, comfort and convenience of the city and its inhabitants.

Appellant has argued that this ordinance has exceeded the scope of this definition and is inconsistent and in conflict with the state laws. Appellants argue that the ordinance attempts to make crimes of acts which are not crimes under state laws. A review of the South Salt Lake Ordinances and the relevant sections of the state laws pertaining to sexual offenses (76-53-8 through 76-53-12) U.C.A. 1953, reveals that both the city ordinance and the state statute have the common purpose of defeating the practice of business or prostitution or the vice of sexual intercourse for hire and are closely related in subject matter.

Salt Lake City v. Allred provides the Supreme Court opinion on the matter:

The mere fact that an act denounced as a crime under the ordinance which is not denounced as a crime under the statute would not necessarily render the act under the ordinance inconsistent with the statute whereas here the ordinance is within the scope of state law dealing with the same related subject of sexual offenses and is in no way repugnant to, but on the other hand is in harmony with the state laws.

POINT V. 3B-8-5(3) OF THE SOUTH SALT LAKE MASSAGE ORDINANCES IS SPECIFIC IN ITS DESCRIPTION OF PROSCRIBED CONDUCT AND THUS CANNOT BE VAGUE.

3B-8-5(3) of the South Salt Lake Ordinances provides "that it shall be unlawful for a masseur to touch or offer to touch or massage the genitalia of customers."

Appellants argue that this provision of the South Salt Lake Ordinances is unconstitutional because of vagueness. The issue of vagueness is best explained by the standard which Utah has applied in various cases:

If the statute is so designed that persons of ordinary intelligence, who would be law abiding can tell what their conduct must be to conform to its requirements, and it is susceptible of uniform interpretation and application by those charged with the responsibility of enforcing it, it is invulnerable to an attack for vagueness.

See Kent Club v. Toronto, 6 Utah 2d 67, 72, 305 P.2d 870, 874 (1957); State v. Packard, 122 Utah, 369, 376, 250 P.2d 561, 564 (1952); Henrie v. Rocky Mountain Packing Corp., 113 Utah 444, 448, 202 P.2d 727, 729 (1949).

Applying the standard to the South Salt Lake Ordinance 3B-8-5(3) it is clear to a person of ordinary intelligence which conduct is unacceptable under the ordinance.

Appellants cite Champlin Refining Co. v. Corporation Com, 286 US 210, 76 L.Ed. 1062, 52 S.Ct. 559 (1932) and Jensen v. Salt Lake County, previously cited, to support

the claim of vagueness. Champlin concerned an Oklahoma Oil Regulation, Jensen concerned licensing. Appellants do not show how the vagueness issue in either case influences the alleged vagueness in the South Salt Lake Ordinance.

Appellants also support their claim of vagueness by calling upon two South Salt Lake City cases which were tried in a Court of the Justice of the Peace. Both cases alleged violations of 3B-8-5(3). Appellants cite City of South Salt Lake v. Susan Mae Rosvall No. 79-6559 and one other case. No citation or defendant's name is provided in the second case.

In Rosvall, appellants assert that the ordinance does not require the act to be a commercial act for a fee and that the offer to touch need not be confined to the massage establishment. Appellants assume this interpretation because their jury instruction was rejected. In fact, the complaint against Rosvall specifies the date, time, and place of occurrence. The complaint specifies that the act occurred at a massage establishment, while Rosvall was acting as a masseur, and that Rosvall offered to touch the genitalia of a customer. Appellants construct their analysis of the ordinance on the basis of their interpretation of what a jury instruction should have read.

In the second case, defendant was charged with

violations of 3B-8-5(3). Defendant, through counsel, urged a jury instruction requiring the defendant actually touch the genitalia before she could be convicted. The instruction was rejected. Again, appellants base the vagueness issue of the ordinance on their interpretation of a rejected jury instruction.

Neither case was conducted in a court of record. The actual reason for rejection of the instructions, and the judge's interpretation of the ordinance are not available.

POINT VI. THE CITY OF SOUTH SALT LAKE MAY ESTABLISH
MINIMUM AGE STANDARDS FOR MASSAGE PARLOR LICENSEES.

Section 3B-8-3(1) of the South Salt Lake Massage Ordinances provides that each individual desiring a massage establishment license or masseur license shall "be an individual at least 21 years of age."

The City of South Salt Lake has a responsibility to protect the morals, health, and welfare of the community. The massage ordinances, including the ordinance in question, were fashioned for the purpose of fulfilling those responsibilities.

The minimum age requirement is a reasonable attempt of the City to regulate the massage parlor business. There is a legitimate relationship between the City's obligations to the community and the ordinance it has enacted to achieve that end. The City of South Salt Lake also has an interest in protecting minors from possible sexual exploitation in the massage parlor establishments.

There are numerous precedents for the establishment of a minimum age requirement. Utah Code Annotated, Section 58-2-1 et seq. provides that persons seeking licenses for various occupations must be 21 years of age, including architects, embalmers, barbers, chiroprodists dentists, surveyors, etc.

The same minimum age requirement has been enforced with regards to consumption of alcohol.

In Purdie v. University of Utah, 584 P.2d 831 (Utah 1978), the court held that age may be a valid classification as long as the reason for the classification is based on a legitimate state interest.

POINT VII. CIVIL SANCTIONS AND PENALTIES INCLUDED IN THE SOUTH SALT LAKE MASSAGE ORDINANCES DO NOT CONFLICT WITH EXISTING STATE CONSPIRACY STATUTES.

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